
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

     

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
  

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, December 20, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 December 13, 2016 Board Meeting  

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

       

Assessor 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 101 

Auditor 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 102    

Commissioners  

c. Step Increase Approval Request  

d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, From Dept. 115 to Dept. 107   

e. Appointment of C Obrien to the Benton County Weed District No. 1  

District Court   

f. Agreement w/State of WA Administrative Office of the Courts    

g. Contract w/A Uvalle for Interpreter Services    

h. Contract w/M Rudeen for Interpreter Services 

i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111 

j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0131-101, Dept. 000 

Facilities    

k. Notice of Award for OPD/PA TI Project to Booth & Sons Construction, Inc.  

l. Contract w/Superior Maintenance Solutions, Inc. for Snow Removal  

Information Technologies 

m. Purchase of Applications & Services from IWorq Systems for Public Works   

n. Purchase of CallMaker & CallReader Software from Techline Communications for Clerk’s 

Office 

Office of Public Defense 

o. Superior Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Iaria  

p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136  

Parks  

q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Dept. 000 

 

 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

December 20, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Personnel 

r. Contract w/Castlebranch, Inc. for Employment  Screening/Background Checks 

s. Appointment of Paynewest Insurance as Broker/Agent for Insurance Policies and Bonds 

Prosecuting Attorney   

t. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117 

u. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117, Rescinding Resolution 2016-948 

Public Safety 

v.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101. Dept. 136   

Public Works 

w. Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Bob Olson Parkway Project   

x. Purchase of Four Ford Pickups from Corwin Ford     

Sheriff 

y. Salary Request Statement   

z. Contract Modification w/US Department of Energy for Law Enforcement Services  

 

Public Hearing 

 

Adoption of Final Biennium Budget ~ P Schut 

 

Scheduled Business  

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
 

 

 

 

   

  

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Cross-Out

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, December 13, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Absent: Commissioner Jerome Delvin (China – Legislative Tour) 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Tavis Hatfield, Road Dept.; 

Auditor Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen;  Public 

Services Administrator Fred Bowen; Jerrod MacPherson, Assistant Planning Manager; OPD 

Manager Eric Hsu; Michelle Cooke, Planning; IT Manager Teri Holmes. 

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of December 1, 2016 and December 6, 2016 were approved.   

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “dd”.  

Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Auditor 

a. Surplus of Personal Property  

Commissioners  

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107    

Coroner 

c. Contract w/Dr. Sigmund Menchel for Forensic Pathology Services 

District Court   

d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111     

e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0131-101, Dept. 000 

Facilities    

f. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115 to Dept. 110 

GIS 

g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 131   

Information Technologies 



 - 2 - 

h. Purchase of Forensic Extraction Device from Cellebrite, Inc. for Sheriff’s Office 

Juvenile   
i. Agreement w/State of WA, Administrative Office of the Courts for Court Interpreter 

Services 

Noxious Weed 

j. Approval of 2017 – 2018 Operating Budget 

Office of Public Defense 

k. Superior Court Public Defense Amended Agreement w/C Harkins 

Planning   

l. Short Plat Vacation ~ SPV 2016-003 

Public Safety 

m.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 111   

Public Works 

n. Purchase of Radio Equipment from Tessco Technologies    

o. Authorizing County Engineer to Sign Annual & Final Fiscal Reports for Federally Funded 

Projects    

p. Construction Plans Approval for Summit View Phase 11 ~ Wallowa Road   

q. Revised Equipment Rental & Revolving Fund Policy 

r. Equipment Rental & Revolving Fund Rental Rates for Non-Road Vehicles 

s. Equipment Rental & Revolving Fund Operational Rates for Road Vehicles  

Sheriff 
t. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120     

u. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121   

v. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 

w. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125 

x. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125   

y. Contract w/LexisNexis for Hard Drive Prison Solutions for Case Law & Codes of WA 

State  

z. Payment to Surplus Ammo & Arms, LLC for Swat Equipment  

aa. Memorandum of Understanding w/US Marshal for Joint Law Enforcement for 2017 

bb. Contract w/Day Wireless Systems  Management Corp. for Installation/Maintenance of 

Electronic Equipment  

cc. Purchase of Furniture from Brutzman’s Office Solution for Training Room 

WSU Extension 
dd. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 108 

 

Office of Public Defense - 3rd Quarter Update 

 

Eric Hsu presented the 3rd quarter update and talked about caseloads and the struggle to balance 

quality representation with fiscal responsibility. 

 

Notable Trends 

 

 Benton County caseloads were not tracking with statewide trends 

 Percentage of cases involving mental health issues was rising   

 Benton County violent felonies continued to be below statewide average  



 - 3 - 

 

Quality Representation  

 Monitoring 

 Training - Second to none in the State 

 Complaint Monitoring – complaints have dropped off  

 

Fiscal Responsibility through data accuracy  

 Attorney reports 

 Courtroom reports 

 Caseload database 

 State Courts computer – final source of information  

 

Commissioner Beaver asked about the mental health issue and reduction in state funding.  Mr. Hsu 

said his information was from a study that graded Washington State as low for funding for mental 

health services.  He said they were aggressively pursuing state reimbursements for competency 

evaluations and contracted with two experts out of the area (Tri-Cities had low access to experts) 

and they agreed to travel to Tri-Cities and they batched the evaluations three to five at a time.   

 

Chairman Small asked if they used resources like Human Services and GCBH and Mr. Hsu 

indicated they tried to problem solve as much as possible and refer to Human Services and other 

services.   

 

Other Business 

 

David Sparks reminded the Board it would be adopting the budget at the December 20, 2016 

meeting and that it was the last meeting of the year.  He said the next meeting after that would be 

January 10, 2017.   

 

Ms. Smith Kelty said the Cities of Kennewick, Richland and West Richland approved and signed 

the short term jail use agreements and City of Prosser would be signing at their meeting tonight.   

 

Mr. Sparks said this would give them until March 31 to work on a long term agreement.   

 

Chairman Small requested a short executive session to discuss the performance of a public 

employee. 

 

The Board recessed at 9:26 a.m. reconvening at 9:27 a.m.   

 

Executive Session – Performance of Public Employee 

 

The Board went into Executive Session at 9:27 a.m. to discuss the performance of a public 

employee for approximately three minutes.  Also present were David Sparks and Cami McKenzie.  

The Board came out at 9:32 a.m.  No decisions were made. 

 

The Board recessed at 9:32 a.m., reconvening at 10:00 a.m.  

 



 - 4 - 

Benton County Emergency Management Training Response Actions - Columbia Generating 

Station 

 

Brian Calvert and Deanna Davis, Benton County Emergency Services said this yearly training was 

a requirement of the FEMA grant to continue to maintain funding and was for a potential radiation 

exposure emergency at the Columbia Generating Station and the steps that would be taken in the 

event of that emergency.   

 

He said an emergency declaration was necessary to start the clock and would allow for 

reimbursement.   

 

Payroll 

 

Check Date:  12/05/2016 

 

Payroll Checks 

Warrant #: 240159-240218 

Direct Deposit #: 119479-120084 

Total all funds: $2,607,347.67 

 

Payroll Deductions/Transfers 

Taxes #: 101161201-101161215 

Total all funds: $2,042,741.88 

 

Payroll Deductions/Warrants 

Warrant #: 149129-149143 

Total all funds:  $382,309.69 

 

Account Payables 

 

Check Date:  12/09/2016 

 

Warrants #: 149382-149383 

Total all funds:  $597,706.07 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2016-1009: Surplus of Personal Property  

2016-1010: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107    

2016-1011: Contract w/Dr. Sigmund Menchel for Forensic Pathology Services 

2016-1012: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111     

2016-1013: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 131   

2016-1014: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115 to Dept. 110 

2016-1015: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0131-101, Dept. 000 



 - 5 - 

 

2016-1016:      Purchase of Forensic Extraction Device from Cellebrite, Inc. for Sheriff’s Office 

2016-1017: Agreement w/State of WA, Administrative Office of the Courts for Court 

Interpreter Services 

2016-1018: Approval of 2017 – 2018 Operating Budget 

2016-1019: Superior Court Public Defense Amended Agreement w/C Harkins 

2016-1020: Short Plat Vacation ~ SPV 2016-003 

2016-1021: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 111   

2016-1022: Purchase of Radio Equipment from Tessco Technologies    

2016-1023: Authorizing County Engineer to Sign Annual & Final Fiscal Reports for Federally 

Funded Projects    

2016-1024: Construction Plans Approval for Summit View Phase 11 ~ Wallowa Road   

2016-1025:      Revised Equipment Rental & Revolving Fund Policy 

2016-1026:      Equipment Rental & Revolving Fund Rental Rates for Non-Road Vehicles 

2016-1027: Equipment Rental & Revolving Fund Operational Rates for Road Vehicles  

2016-1028: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120     

2016-1029: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121   

2016-1030: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 

2016-1031:      Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125 

2016-1032:      Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125   

2016-1033: Contract w/LexisNexis for Hard Drive Prison Solutions for Case Law & Codes of 

WA State  

2016-1034:      Payment to Surplus Ammo & Arms, LLC for Swat Equipment  

2016-1035: Memorandum of Understanding w/US Marshal for Joint Law Enforcement for 

2017 

2016-1036: Contract w/Day Wireless Systems Management Corp. for Installation and 

Maintenance of Electronic Equipment  

2016-1037: Purchase of Furniture from Brutzman’s Office Solution for Training Room 

2016-1038:      Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 108 

 

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:12 

a.m.    

 

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



WEH
Text Box
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 101







Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc:  B. Chilton; Auditor; File RANGER

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 

CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000101.102

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 102



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM: Dept. TRANSFER TO: Dept. 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

514.280 4894 ER & R Repair $80 514.280 4593 Automobile Rental $80

514.300 4894 ER & R Repair $76 514.300 4593 Automobile Rental $76

514.810 4894 ER & R Repair $122 514.810 4593 Automobile Rental $122

514.810 1905 Temporary Help $1,500 514.810 1201 Overtime $750

514.300 1201 Overtime $750

TOTAL $1,778 TOTAL $1,778

Explanation:

Prepared by: T Ranger Reviewed by: B Chilton Date:  12/8/16

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Due to error at beginning of budget cycle, all vehicle rental and repair dollars were appropriated to same line item.  Line item transfers were done to 

allocate repair portion.  Too much money was transferred from rental.  Transfer is needed to pay remaining balance of assessment for 2015-16 budget 

cycle.  Additionally, due to training in a new Department of Licensing software system, extra overtime was necessary for licensing employees.  We also 

anticipate additional OT in both recording and licensing through the end of the year due to the new system.

Auditor

Current Expense

N/A

0000101.102



WEH
Text Box
c. Step Increase Approval Request



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM CURRENT EXPENSE FUND
0000101, NON-DEPARTMENT DEPT. 115 TO CURRENT EXPENSE FUND
0000101, COMMISSIONERS DEPT. 107

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, From Dept. 115 to Dept. 107



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 115 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 107

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

511.600 4931 Fenced Item Contingency $1,553 511.200 4593 Automobile Rental $760

511.600 4593 Automobile Rental $793

TOTAL $1,553 TOTAL $1,553

Explanation:

Prepared by: Paul Schut Date:  09-Dec-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to cover shortfalls seen Automobile Rentals

Commissioners

Current Expense

107

0000-101



WEH
Text Box
e. Appointment of C Obrien to the Benton County Weed District No. 1





WEH
Text Box
f. Agreement w/State of WA Administrative Office of the Courts































WEH
Text Box
g. Contract w/A Uvalle for Interpreter Services

















WEH
Text Box
h. Contract w/M Rudeen for Interpreter Services

















WEH
Text Box
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

512.400 4182 Juvenile Dentention $3,500 512.400 1922 Judge Pro Tem $3,500

TOTAL $3,500 TOTAL $3,500

Explanation:

Prepared by: J. Lahtinen Date:  15-Dec-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to fund Judge Pro-Tem Line Item

District Court

Current Expense

111

0000-101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
PROBATION ASSESSMENT FUND NUMBER 0131-101, DEPARTMENT
NUMBER 000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0131-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

512.410 1132 PT Compliance Clerk $22,000 512.410 1148 Court Recorder $2,784

512.410 1311 Clerk Assistant $4,383 512.410 1277 Administrator $575

512.410 1290 Compliance Clerk $2,167

512.410 1294 Computer Coordinator/Assistant $478

512.410 1297 Probation Officer $4,467

512.410 1298 Compliance Clerk $2,916

512.410 1299 Compliance Clerk I $1,268

512.410 1832 Compliance Clerk $5,478

512.410 2103 Medical Insurance $750

512.410 2104 Retirement $5,500

TOTAL $26,383 TOTAL $26,383

Explanation:

Prepared by: P. Schut Date:  13-Dec-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to cover shortages seen with Salaries and Benefits

No Department

Probation Assessment

000

0131-101



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 12/20/2016     

Subject: Justice Center 

Tenant 

Improvements 

Prepared by:       Larry Hueter 

Reviewed by:   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution  __X__  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   None 

 

Consent Agenda            

__X__  

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            _____ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  

  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
At the November 1, 2016 Commissioner Meeting, Facilities Manager Dan Waggoner requested approval for 
Benton County to go out to bid for the OPD/PA TI Improvements for the Justice Center. A motion was introduced, 
seconded and passed to bid this project. Meier Enterprises prepared the bid documents and on December 7, 2016 
the project received the following six bids: 
  

Industrial Constructors, Inc.    $1,347,000.00 
 M.H. Construction, Inc.    $1,398,566.00  
 Booth & Sons Construction, Inc.   $1,340,000.00 
 Siefken & Sons Construction, Inc.   $1,358,645.00 
 Total Site Services, General Contractors  $1,599,000.00 
 G2 Construction, Inc.     $1,224,000.00 
 
G2 Construction was the low bidder until they withdrew their bid within the first hour after the bid opening. They 
immediately followed up with a formal letter, claiming a substantial error. Benton County accepted their 
withdrawal and found Booth & Sons to be the lowest responsible bidder. Booth and Sons complied with all the bid 
requirements and has presented a full subcontractors list to Benton County. 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the Resolution providing Notice of Lowest Responsible Bidder Award to Booth & Sons Construction, Inc. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
$1,340,000.00 plus a Change Order Contingency of $134,000.00 and the addition of $126,800.00 Sales Tax for a total 
of $1,600,800.00 to be appropriated from the $1,800,000.00 budget included in Capital Projects Fund and Public Safety 
Tax Fund. 
 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
k. Notice of Award for OPD/PA TI Project to Booth & Sons Construction, Inc.



cc: Facilities    C. McKenzie 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN THE MATTER OF PROVIDING NOTICE OF THE LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BIDDER FOR THE OFFICE 
OF  PUBLIC  DEFENSE/PROSECUTING  ATTORNEY  TENANT  IMPROVEMENTS  FOR  THE  JUSTICE 
CENTER TO BOOTH & SONS CONSTRUCTION, INC.  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2015‐607 the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved an 
architectural and engineering contract with Meier Enterprises, Inc. to provide architectural and 
engineering services for the Office of Public Defense/Prosecuting Attorney Tenant Improvements 
for the Justice Center; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board approved three amendments to the contract with Meier Enterprises, Inc. 
per Resolutions 2015‐710, 2016‐423 and 2016‐515; and  
 
WHEREAS, on November 1, 2016 the Board authorized the Facilities Manager to proceed with 
advertising  for bids  from qualified  contractors  for  the OPD/PA Tenant  Improvements  for  the 
Justice Center; and  
 
WHEREAS, on December 7, 2016 representatives of Benton County and Meier Enterprises, Inc. 
received and opened six (6) bids  as follows:   
 

Industrial Constructors, Inc.        $1,347,000.00 
  M.H. Construction, Inc.        $1,398,566.00  
  Booth & Sons Construction, Inc.      $1,340,000.00 
  Siefken & Sons Construction, Inc.      $1,358,645.00 
  Total Site Services, General Contractors    $1,599,000.00 
  G2 Construction, Inc.          $1,224,000.00 
 
WHEREAS, G2 Construction was the low bidder until they withdrew their bid within the first 
hour after the bid opening. They immediately followed up with a formal letter, claiming a 
substantial error and Benton County accepted their withdrawal and found Booth & Sons 
Construction, Inc. to be the lowest responsible bidder; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Public Services Administrator, Benton County Project Manager, and 
representatives of Meier Enterprises, Inc. reviewed the bid proposals and recommend award of 
the bid to Booth & Sons Construction, Inc. as the lowest responsible bidder; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the  Public  Services  Administrator  and  Project  Manager  recommend  the  Board 
approve a contingency of up to $134,000 be added to the bid; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
   



   
 

BE  IT  RESOLVED,  the  Board  of  Benton  County  Commissioners  hereby  concurs  with  the 
recommendation and awards the bid to Booth & Sons Construction, Inc. for the Office of Public 
Defense/Prosecuting Attorney Tenant Improvements for the Justice Center and authorizes staff 
to prepare a contract between Benton County and Booth & Son Construction, Inc. to be placed 
on the agenda at a later date.   
 
Dated this _______ day of _______________, 2016. 

  ___________________________                
  Chairman of the Board 

 
  

  ___________________________              
  Member 

 
 

  ___________________________                
  Member 

    Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 

Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board  



WEH
Text Box
l. Contract w/Superior Maintenance Solutions, Inc. for Snow Removal

































































WEH
Text Box
m. Purchase of Applications & Services from IWorq Systems for Public Works















WEH
Text Box
n. Purchase of CallMaker & CallReader Software from Techline Communications for Clerk’s Office







WEH
Text Box
o. Superior Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Iaria































WEH
Text Box
p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136







Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor C. McKenzie

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND NUMBER 0110-102, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 

000.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

576-810 4102 Contract Services $7,000 594-760 6401 Capital Outlay $7,000

TOTAL $7,000 TOTAL $7,000

Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  15-Dec-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  12/20/2016

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Per Resolution 2016-744 to pay for a a new shelter at Two Rivers Parks

Park Development

000

0110-102



WEH
Text Box
r. Contract w/Castlebranch, Inc. for Employment Screening/Background Checks















WEH
Text Box
s. Appointment of Paynewest Insurance as Broker/Agent for Insurance Policies and Bonds





Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 117

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and 

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
t. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

515.300 1337 Chief Deputy, Criminal $8,000 515.300 3101 Supplies $8,000

515.300 1354 Legal Secretary II $15,200 515.300 4101 Legal Services $9,000

515.300 1344 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $150 515.300 4102 Contract Services $6,200

515.300 1563 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $3,000 515.300 4107 Messager Service UPS $150

515.810 4103 Professional Services $27,000 515.300 4109 Witness Fees $3,000

515.300 1705 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $16,000 515.300 4120 Expert Witnesses $27,000

515.300 4503 Rentals - Office Equipment $665 515.300 4127 Evidence & Breifing $16,000

515.300 1345 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $10,000 515.300 4593 Automobile Rental $665

515.810 4201 Postage $9,000 515.300 4901 Association Dues $10,000

515.300 1830 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $2,700 515.300 4905 Training $9,000

515.300 4906 Print Bindery $2,700

TOTAL $91,715 TOTAL $91,715

Explanation:

Prepared by: Paul Schut Date:  09-Dec-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to cover shortfalls seen within Supplies and Services

Prosecuting Attorney

Current Expense

117

0000-101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 117,
AND RESCINDING RESOLUTION 2016-948

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and 

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, resolution 2016-948 is hereby rescinded.

WEH
Text Box
u. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117, Rescinding Resolution 2016-948



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

515.300 1335 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $43,400 515.300 1338 Chief Criminal Deputy $8,000

515.300 1830 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $30,000 515.300 1340 Legal Secretary Supervisor $4,200

515.300 1828 Legal Secretary V $20,000 515.300 1343 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $5,700

515.300 1347 DPA (DUI Grant) $16,000 515.300 1349 Legal Secretary III $2,400

515.300 1357 Legal Secretary V $9,300 515.300 1351 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $5,900

515.300 1337 Chief Deputy, Criminal $6,650 515.300 1356 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $3,700

515.320 1339 Legal Support Analyst $17,675 515.300 1359 Legal Secretary II $1,000

515.320 1350 Senior Civil Deputy $11,825 515.300 1362 Legal Secretary V $3,200

515.300 1799 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $23,850 515.300 1375 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $6,200

515.300 1704 Legal Secretary V $3,100

515.300 1792 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $6,500

515.300 1794 Legal Secretary II $2,600

515.300 1801 Bilingual V/W Coordinator $15,000

515.300 1829 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $6,200

515.300 2102 Social Security (FICA) $14,000

515.300 2103 Medical Insurance $21,000

515.300 2104 Retirement $10,000

515.311 1358 Child Interviewer $4,500

515.311 2102 Social Security (FICA) $275

515.311 2103 Medical Insurance $1,200

515.311 2104 Retirement $675

515.320 1342 Senior Civil Deputy $14,000

515.320 1360 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney $6,100

515.320 1795 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney IV $4,900

515.320 2103 Medical Insurance $4,400

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Prosecuting Attorney

Current Expense

117

0000-101



EXHIBIT "A"

515.320 2104 Retirement $100

515.330 1178 Legal Secretary VI $2,800

515.330 1336 Prosecuting Attorney $9,500

515.330 1341 Office Administrator $5,400

515.330 2102 Social Security (FICA) $250

515.330 2103 Medical Insurance $3,100

515.330 2104 Retirement $2,800

TOTAL $178,700 TOTAL $178,700

Explanation:

Prepared by: Paul Schut Date:  09-Dec-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Transfer needed to cover shortfalls seen within Salaries and Benefits.



WEH
Text Box
v. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101. Dept. 136







WEH
Text Box
w. Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Bob Olson Parkway Project





















WEH
Text Box
x. Purchase of Four Ford Pickups from Corwin Ford















WEH
Text Box
y. Salary Request Statement



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Dec. 20, 2016       
Subject: Contract Modification 

w/ Dept. of Energy 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson    

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Benton County and the U.S. Department of Energy entered into a contract for law enforcement service beginning 
of 1993.   
 
Per Resolution 2013-268 and Contract No. DE-EM0002426, the Department of Energy solicited the Sheriff’s Office 
for a contract that would continue law enforcement services for the calendar year 2013 with four (4) one-year 
options.  
 
Per Resolutions 2013-845; 2015-029; and 2015-822 the Board approved the contract modifications to contract DE-
EM0002426 between Benton County and U.S. Department of Energy to exercise options 1, 2, & 3 to extend the 
contract to December 31, 2016, as further outlined in the attached Resolution.  
 
The attached Modification No. 0030 is necessary as the U.S. Department of Energy wishes to provide $0.12 cents 
that will fully fund option year 3 which expires December 31, 2016, and exercise the fourth option for law 
enforcement services on the Hanford Site in the amount of $892,231.00 from January 1, 2017 – December 31, 
2017. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Patrol Captain has reviewed the proposed Modification No. 0030 and recommends moving forward 
with the attached Contract Modification No. 0030 for law enforcement services on the Hanford Site in the 
amount of $892,231.00 for a period beginning January 1, 2017 – December 31, 2017. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
Ryan Lukson did not sign off on the modification, as he did not review or approve the original contract 
back in 2013; however, he was provided a copy of the attached Modification for review.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Revenue in the amount of $892,231.00 for law enforcement services on the Hanford site for 2017. 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
z. Contract Modification w/US Department of Energy for Law Enforcement Services



Original: Sheriff’s Office                                                                                                                                                  L. Small 
CC: Auditor; S. Araiza; DOE 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF CONTRACT DE-EM0002426 MODIFICATION NO. 0030 
BETWEEN U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY AND THE BENTON COUNTY 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County and the U.S. Department of Energy have entered into a Contract for 
law enforcement service beginning of 1993; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2013-268 and Contract Number DE-EM0002426, the Department of 
Energy solicited the Sheriff’s Office for a contract that would continue law enforcement services 
for the calendar year 2013 with four one-year options; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2013-845 dated November 26, 2013, the Board approved Contact 
Modification No. 0008 to Contract DE-EM0002426 reducing the Scope of Work and exercising 
the first option for law enforcement services on Hanford Site in the amount of $901,255 from 
January 1, 2014 – January 31, 2014; and   
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2014-951 dated December 2, 2014, the Board approved Contract 
Modification No. 0018 as the U.S. Department of Energy wished to incorporate FAR 52.203-17, 
Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement to Inform Employees of 
Whistleblower Rights to Section I and updating the Table of Content and page numbers; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2015-029 dated January 6, 2015, the Board approved Contract 
Modification No. 0019 as the U.S. Department of Energy wished to exercise the second option for 
law enforcement services on Hanford Site in the amount of $911,236.00 from January 1, 2015 – 
December 31, 2015; and    
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2015-822 dated November 17, 2015, the Board approved Contract 
Modification No. 0023 as the U.S. Department of Energy wished to provide $138,517.34 of FY16 
funding for the period of November 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 and exercise the third 
option for law enforcement services on the Hanford Site in the amount of $851,977.00 from 
January 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016; and   
 
WHEREAS, the attached Modification No. 0030 is necessary as the U.S. Department of Energy 
wishes to provide $0.12 cents that will fully fund option year 3 which expires December 31, 2016, 
and exercise the fourth option for law enforcement services on the Hanford Site in the amount of 
$892,231.00 from January 1, 2017 – December 31, 2017; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Patrol Captain has reviewed the proposed modification and recommends moving 
forward with the attached Contract Modification No. 0030; NOW, THEREFORE 
 



Original: Sheriff’s Office                                                                                                                                                  L. Small 
CC: Auditor; S. Araiza; DOE 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners approves the attached 
Contract DE-EM0002426 Modification 0030 between Benton County and U.S. Department of 
Energy, providing provide $0.12 cents that will fully fund option year 3 which expires December 
31, 2016, and exercise the fourth option for law enforcement services on the Hanford Site in the 
amount of $892,231.00 from January 1, 2017 – December 31, 2017; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign 
the attached Modification No. 0030 to Contract DE-EM0002426. 
 
 
 
Dated this________day of _______________, 2016 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 

          
             

            Member                           
           

 
             

                   Member 
Attest:                        

Clerk of the Board                                                      Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 





 
 

 
 

 
 

7



Law and Traffic Enforcement 
DE-EM0002426 Modification 30 

 

 
Page 6 of 93 

Section B - Supplies or Services/Prices 
 
 
DOE-B-1001 Deliverable Requirements - Firm Fixed Price (Tailored) 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for providing law and traffic enforcement services as described in 
Section C, Statement of Work (SOW), at the facilities specified in the DOE-F-1002. 
 
This contract is a fixed price contract with a base year of January 1, 2013, through December 31, 2013, and 
four one-year option years of January 1 through December 31. 
 

Item Description Unit Amount 
   
00001 Base Year – 2013 

January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 
Lump Sum* $ 983,097 

    
00002 First Option Year – 2014 

January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 
Lump Sum* $ 901,255 

    
00003 Second Option Year – 2015 

January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 
Lump Sum* $ 911,236 

    
00004 Third Option Year – 2016 

January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 
Lump Sum* $ 851,977 

    
00005 Fourth Option Year – 2017 

January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017 
Lump Sum* $ 892,231 

    
 Total of All Periods: $ 4,539,796 

 
 
*Payments will be made in twelve (12) equal monthly payments. 
 
The Item Numbers ordered to date are 00001 – 00005. 
 
The Firm-Fixed-Price of the items ordered to date is $4,539,796.   
 
(End of clause) 



Law and Traffic Enforcement 

DE-EM0002426 

Attachment 1 

 

Page 1 of 1 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST 

 

Program:   Law Enforcement Services 

Contract No.:  DE-EM0002426 

Contractor:  Benton County Sheriff’s Office 

 

The Contractor shall provide DOE Federal Officers with the following reports, 

documents, data and access to information regarding contractor activities on the Hanford 

Site: 

 

1. Quarterly Report – shall provide a quarterly summary of all activities performed 

by the contractor during the prior quarterly period.  The following information 

shall be included in the Quarterly Report: 

 

Criminal investigations 

Traffic patrol activities 

Canine unit activities 

River Patrol activities, as applicable 

Aerial surveillance activities, as applicable 

 

2. Criminal Investigation Reports - shall provide investigative reports/summaries of 

felony investigations within 30 days of initial report to the contractor. 

 

3. Report on Disposition of any Court Cases – shall provide upon completion of the 

courts case or upon significant actions taken by the court regarding the case. 

 

4. Log Documenting Canine Unit Searches – shall provide on a quarterly basis. 

 

5. As requested by DOE Federal Officers – develop and provide a trend analysis of 

criminal activity on the Hanford Site. 

 

All requirements of Benton County under this contract to provide criminal recodes is 

subject to the Washington Criminal Records Privacy Act, RCW 10.97 and the 

Washington Public Records Act, RCW 42.17.  Any records subject to the Act are 

available to other law enforcement personnel, including commissioned federal officers 

employed by the Department of Energy. 

 



WD 05-2570 (Rev.-19) was first posted on www.wdol.gov on 01/05/2016 
************************************************************************************ 
REGISTER OF WAGE DETERMINATIONS UNDER  |        U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
       THE SERVICE CONTRACT ACT        |  EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS ADMINISTRATION 
By direction of the Secretary of Labor |         WAGE AND HOUR DIVISION 
                                       |         WASHINGTON D.C.  20210 
                                       | 
                                       | 
                                       | 
                                       | Wage Determination No.: 2005-2570 
Daniel W. Simms          Division of   |           Revision No.: 19 
Director            Wage Determinations|       Date Of Revision: 12/29/2015 
_______________________________________|____________________________________________ 
Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of $10.15 for 
calendar year 2016 applies to all contracts subject to the Service Contract 
Act for which the solicitation was issued on or after January 1, 2015. If this 
contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any 
classification listed on this wage determination at least $10.15 per hour (or 
the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) 
for all hours spent performing on the contract in calendar year 2016. The EO 
minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Additional information on 
contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at 
www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts. 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
States: Oregon, Washington 

Area: Oregon Counties of Baker, Grant, Harney, Malheur, Morrow, Umatilla, 
Union, Wallowa, Wheeler 
Washington Counties of Benton, Franklin, Walla Walla, Yakima 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
          **Fringe Benefits Required Follow the Occupational Listing** 
OCCUPATION CODE - TITLE                                  FOOTNOTE               RATE 
01000 - Administrative Support And Clerical Occupations 
  01011 - Accounting Clerk I                                                   13.61 
  01012 - Accounting Clerk II                                                  15.27 
  01013 - Accounting Clerk III                                                 17.08 
  01020 - Administrative Assistant                                             22.41 
  01040 - Court Reporter                                                       18.59 
  01051 - Data Entry Operator I                                                13.38 
  01052 - Data Entry Operator II                                               14.60 
  01060 - Dispatcher, Motor Vehicle                                            18.77 
  01070 - Document Preparation Clerk                                           12.94 
  01090 - Duplicating Machine Operator                                         12.94 
  01111 - General Clerk I                                                      13.10 
  01112 - General Clerk II                                                     14.30 
  01113 - General Clerk III                                                    16.05 
  01120 - Housing Referral Assistant                                           20.52 
  01141 - Messenger Courier                                                    11.95 
  01191 - Order Clerk I                                                        12.44 
  01192 - Order Clerk II                                                       13.57 
  01261 - Personnel Assistant (Employment) I                                   17.21 
  01262 - Personnel Assistant (Employment) II                                  19.25 
  01263 - Personnel Assistant (Employment) III                                 21.47 
  01270 - Production Control Clerk                                             26.54 
  01280 - Receptionist                                                         12.83 
  01290 - Rental Clerk                                                         15.00 
  01300 - Scheduler, Maintenance                                               16.45 
  01311 - Secretary I                                                          16.45 
  01312 - Secretary II                                                         18.40 
  01313 - Secretary III                                                        20.52 
  01320 - Service Order Dispatcher                                             18.84 

Page 1 of 9

12/5/2016http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/std/05-2570.txt?v=19



  01410 - Supply Technician                                                    22.80 
  01420 - Survey Worker                                                        17.33 
  01531 - Travel Clerk I                                                       14.84 
  01532 - Travel Clerk II                                                      15.95 
  01533 - Travel Clerk III                                                     17.09 
  01611 - Word Processor I                                                     15.07 
  01612 - Word Processor II                                                    16.91 
  01613 - Word Processor III                                                   18.91 
05000 - Automotive Service Occupations 
  05005 - Automobile Body Repairer, Fiberglass                                 18.71 
  05010 - Automotive  Electrician                                              18.82 
  05040 - Automotive Glass Installer                                           17.82 
  05070 - Automotive Worker                                                    17.82 
  05110 - Mobile Equipment Servicer                                            15.82 
  05130 - Motor Equipment Metal Mechanic                                       19.80 
  05160 - Motor Equipment Metal Worker                                         17.82 
  05190 - Motor Vehicle Mechanic                                               19.80 
  05220 - Motor Vehicle Mechanic Helper                                        14.82 
  05250 - Motor Vehicle Upholstery Worker                                      16.81 
  05280 - Motor Vehicle Wrecker                                                17.82 
  05310 - Painter, Automotive                                                  18.82 
  05340 - Radiator Repair Specialist                                           17.82 
  05370 - Tire Repairer                                                        14.44 
  05400 - Transmission Repair Specialist                                       19.80 
07000 - Food Preparation And Service Occupations 
  07010 - Baker                                                                17.23 
  07041 - Cook I                                                               13.97 
  07042 - Cook II                                                              15.66 
  07070 - Dishwasher                                                            9.89 
  07130 - Food Service Worker                                                  10.88 
  07210 - Meat Cutter                                                          17.51 
  07260 - Waiter/Waitress                                                      12.54 
09000 - Furniture Maintenance And Repair Occupations 
  09010 - Electrostatic Spray Painter                                          20.54 
  09040 - Furniture Handler                                                    13.45 
  09080 - Furniture Refinisher                                                 20.54 
  09090 - Furniture Refinisher Helper                                          16.17 
  09110 - Furniture Repairer, Minor                                            18.34 
  09130 - Upholsterer                                                          20.54 
11000 - General Services And Support Occupations 
  11030 - Cleaner, Vehicles                                                    11.95 
  11060 - Elevator Operator                                                    11.95 
  11090 - Gardener                                                             16.89 
  11122 - Housekeeping Aide                                                    13.41 
  11150 - Janitor                                                              16.03 
  11210 - Laborer, Grounds Maintenance                                         12.77 
  11240 - Maid or Houseman                                                      9.88 
  11260 - Pruner                                                               11.97 
  11270 - Tractor Operator                                                     15.28 
  11330 - Trail Maintenance Worker                                             12.77 
  11360 - Window Cleaner                                                       18.02 
12000 - Health Occupations 
  12010 - Ambulance Driver                                                     16.83 
  12011 - Breath Alcohol Technician                                            17.22 
  12012 - Certified Occupational Therapist Assistant                           23.78 
  12015 - Certified Physical Therapist Assistant                               24.27 
  12020 - Dental Assistant                                                     16.96 
  12025 - Dental Hygienist                                                     43.92 
  12030 - EKG Technician                                                       26.27 
  12035 - Electroneurodiagnostic Technologist                                  26.27 
  12040 - Emergency Medical Technician                                         16.83 
  12071 - Licensed Practical Nurse I                                           15.49 

Page 2 of 9

12/5/2016http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/std/05-2570.txt?v=19



  12072 - Licensed Practical Nurse II                                          17.33 
  12073 - Licensed Practical Nurse III                                         19.33 
  12100 - Medical Assistant                                                    14.85 
  12130 - Medical Laboratory Technician                                        16.01 
  12160 - Medical Record Clerk                                                 13.99 
  12190 - Medical Record Technician                                            15.65 
  12195 - Medical Transcriptionist                                             17.58 
  12210 - Nuclear Medicine Technologist                                        36.58 
  12221 - Nursing Assistant I                                                  10.06 
  12222 - Nursing Assistant II                                                 11.31 
  12223 - Nursing Assistant III                                                12.34 
  12224 - Nursing Assistant IV                                                 13.85 
  12235 - Optical Dispenser                                                    17.33 
  12236 - Optical Technician                                                   16.27 
  12250 - Pharmacy Technician                                                  15.67 
  12280 - Phlebotomist                                                         13.85 
  12305 - Radiologic Technologist                                              26.57 
  12311 - Registered Nurse I                                                   29.51 
  12312 - Registered Nurse II                                                  36.10 
  12313 - Registered Nurse II, Specialist                                      36.10 
  12314 - Registered Nurse III                                                 43.68 
  12315 - Registered Nurse III, Anesthetist                                    43.68 
  12316 - Registered Nurse IV                                                  52.36 
  12317 - Scheduler (Drug and Alcohol Testing)                                 21.34 
13000 - Information And Arts Occupations 
  13011 - Exhibits Specialist I                                                20.38 
  13012 - Exhibits Specialist II                                               25.26 
  13013 - Exhibits Specialist III                                              30.90 
  13041 - Illustrator I                                                        20.38 
  13042 - Illustrator II                                                       25.26 
  13043 - Illustrator III                                                      30.90 
  13047 - Librarian                                                            27.96 
  13050 - Library Aide/Clerk                                                   14.18 
  13054 - Library Information Technology Systems                               25.26 
  Administrator 
  13058 - Library Technician                                                   18.10 
  13061 - Media Specialist I                                                   18.22 
  13062 - Media Specialist II                                                  20.40 
  13063 - Media Specialist III                                                 22.73 
  13071 - Photographer I                                                       16.41 
  13072 - Photographer II                                                      18.36 
  13073 - Photographer III                                                     22.74 
  13074 - Photographer IV                                                      27.81 
  13075 - Photographer V                                                       33.65 
  13110 - Video Teleconference Technician                                      17.69 
14000 - Information Technology Occupations 
  14041 - Computer Operator I                                                  19.45 
  14042 - Computer Operator II                                                 21.76 
  14043 - Computer Operator III                                                24.28 
  14044 - Computer Operator IV                                                 26.98 
  14045 - Computer Operator V                                                  29.87 
  14071 - Computer Programmer I                          (see 1)               22.85 
  14072 - Computer Programmer II                         (see 1) 
  14073 - Computer Programmer III                        (see 1) 
  14074 - Computer Programmer IV                         (see 1) 
  14101 - Computer Systems Analyst I                     (see 1) 
  14102 - Computer Systems Analyst II                    (see 1) 
  14103 - Computer Systems Analyst III                   (see 1) 
  14150 - Peripheral Equipment Operator                                        19.45 
  14160 - Personal Computer Support Technician                                 26.98 
15000 - Instructional Occupations 
  15010 - Aircrew Training Devices Instructor (Non-Rated)                      30.62 

Page 3 of 9

12/5/2016http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/std/05-2570.txt?v=19



  15020 - Aircrew Training Devices Instructor (Rated)                          37.04 
  15030 - Air Crew Training Devices Instructor (Pilot)                         44.39 
  15050 - Computer Based Training Specialist / Instructor                      30.62 
  15060 - Educational Technologist                                             37.11 
  15070 - Flight Instructor (Pilot)                                            44.39 
  15080 - Graphic Artist                                                       21.49 
  15090 - Technical Instructor                                                 28.36 
  15095 - Technical Instructor/Course Developer                                32.54 
  15110 - Test Proctor                                                         21.49 
  15120 - Tutor                                                                21.49 
16000 - Laundry, Dry-Cleaning, Pressing And Related Occupations 
  16010 - Assembler                                                            10.90 
  16030 - Counter Attendant                                                    10.90 
  16040 - Dry Cleaner                                                          13.76 
  16070 - Finisher, Flatwork, Machine                                          10.90 
  16090 - Presser, Hand                                                        10.90 
  16110 - Presser, Machine, Drycleaning                                        10.90 
  16130 - Presser, Machine, Shirts                                             10.90 
  16160 - Presser, Machine, Wearing Apparel, Laundry                           10.90 
  16190 - Sewing Machine Operator                                              14.71 
  16220 - Tailor                                                               15.67 
  16250 - Washer, Machine                                                      11.84 
19000 - Machine Tool Operation And Repair Occupations 
  19010 - Machine-Tool Operator (Tool Room)                                    23.95 
  19040 - Tool And Die Maker                                                   29.01 
21000 - Materials Handling And Packing Occupations 
  21020 - Forklift Operator                                                    14.88 
  21030 - Material Coordinator                                                 26.54 
  21040 - Material Expediter                                                   26.54 
  21050 - Material Handling Laborer                                            13.19 
  21071 - Order Filler                                                         13.22 
  21080 - Production Line Worker (Food Processing)                             14.88 
  21110 - Shipping Packer                                                      13.22 
  21130 - Shipping/Receiving Clerk                                             13.22 
  21140 - Store Worker I                                                       11.35 
  21150 - Stock Clerk                                                          16.17 
  21210 - Tools And Parts Attendant                                            14.88 
  21410 - Warehouse Specialist                                                 14.88 
23000 - Mechanics And Maintenance And Repair Occupations 
  23010 - Aerospace Structural Welder                                          25.78 
  23021 - Aircraft Mechanic I                                                  24.50 
  23022 - Aircraft Mechanic II                                                 25.78 
  23023 - Aircraft Mechanic III                                                27.31 
  23040 - Aircraft Mechanic Helper                                             17.80 
  23050 - Aircraft, Painter                                                    22.96 
  23060 - Aircraft Servicer                                                    20.21 
  23080 - Aircraft Worker                                                      21.45 
  23110 - Appliance Mechanic                                                   22.36 
  23120 - Bicycle Repairer                                                     14.44 
  23125 - Cable Splicer                                                        34.15 
  23130 - Carpenter, Maintenance                                               22.89 
  23140 - Carpet Layer                                                         20.37 
  23160 - Electrician, Maintenance                                             30.09 
  23181 - Electronics Technician Maintenance I                                 26.22 
  23182 - Electronics Technician Maintenance II                                28.08 
  23183 - Electronics Technician Maintenance III                               29.95 
  23260 - Fabric Worker                                                        20.20 
  23290 - Fire Alarm System Mechanic                                           24.83 
  23310 - Fire Extinguisher Repairer                                           18.63 
  23311 - Fuel Distribution System Mechanic                                    25.43 
  23312 - Fuel Distribution System Operator                                    19.09 
  23370 - General Maintenance Worker                                           19.13 

Page 4 of 9

12/5/2016http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/std/05-2570.txt?v=19



  23380 - Ground Support Equipment Mechanic                                    24.50 
  23381 - Ground Support Equipment Servicer                                    20.21 
  23382 - Ground Support Equipment Worker                                      21.45 
  23391 - Gunsmith I                                                           18.63 
  23392 - Gunsmith II                                                          21.74 
  23393 - Gunsmith III                                                         24.83 
  23410 - Heating, Ventilation And Air-Conditioning                            21.57 
  Mechanic 
  23411 - Heating, Ventilation And Air Contditioning                           22.70 
  Mechanic (Research Facility) 
  23430 - Heavy Equipment Mechanic                                             25.42 
  23440 - Heavy Equipment Operator                                             23.61 
  23460 - Instrument Mechanic                                                  26.61 
  23465 - Laboratory/Shelter Mechanic                                          23.29 
  23470 - Laborer                                                              12.28 
  23510 - Locksmith                                                            20.45 
  23530 - Machinery Maintenance Mechanic                                       25.56 
  23550 - Machinist, Maintenance                                               22.78 
  23580 - Maintenance Trades Helper                                            16.87 
  23591 - Metrology Technician I                                               26.61 
  23592 - Metrology Technician II                                              28.00 
  23593 - Metrology Technician III                                             29.66 
  23640 - Millwright                                                           30.04 
  23710 - Office Appliance Repairer                                            22.32 
  23760 - Painter, Maintenance                                                 19.88 
  23790 - Pipefitter, Maintenance                                              29.30 
  23810 - Plumber, Maintenance                                                 27.84 
  23820 - Pneudraulic Systems Mechanic                                         24.83 
  23850 - Rigger                                                               24.83 
  23870 - Scale Mechanic                                                       21.74 
  23890 - Sheet-Metal Worker, Maintenance                                      25.26 
  23910 - Small Engine Mechanic                                                19.59 
  23931 - Telecommunications Mechanic I                                        25.46 
  23932 - Telecommunications Mechanic II                                       26.79 
  23950 - Telephone Lineman                                                    23.94 
  23960 - Welder, Combination, Maintenance                                     21.15 
  23965 - Well Driller                                                         24.83 
  23970 - Woodcraft Worker                                                     24.83 
  23980 - Woodworker                                                           18.63 
24000 - Personal Needs Occupations 
  24570 - Child Care Attendant                                                 10.04 
  24580 - Child Care Center Clerk                                              13.63 
  24610 - Chore Aide                                                           11.35 
  24620 - Family Readiness And Support Services                                13.44 
  Coordinator 
  24630 - Homemaker                                                            14.44 
25000 - Plant And System Operations Occupations 
  25010 - Boiler Tender                                                        27.31 
  25040 - Sewage Plant Operator                                                23.29 
  25070 - Stationary Engineer                                                  27.31 
  25190 - Ventilation Equipment Tender                                         20.58 
  25210 - Water Treatment Plant Operator                                       23.29 
27000 - Protective Service Occupations 
  27004 - Alarm Monitor                                                        22.01 
  27007 - Baggage Inspector                                                    17.55 
  27008 - Corrections Officer                                                  23.96 
  27010 - Court Security Officer                                               25.24 
  27030 - Detection Dog Handler                                                22.01 
  27040 - Detention Officer                                                    23.96 
  27070 - Firefighter                                                          25.75 
  27101 - Guard I                                                              17.55 
  27102 - Guard II                                                             22.01 

Page 5 of 9

12/5/2016http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/std/05-2570.txt?v=19



  27131 - Police Officer I                                                     28.67 
  27132 - Police Officer II                                                    31.84 
28000 - Recreation Occupations 
  28041 - Carnival Equipment Operator                                          15.64 
  28042 - Carnival Equipment Repairer                                          16.71 
  28043 - Carnival Equpment Worker                                             11.72 
  28210 - Gate Attendant/Gate Tender                                           14.01 
  28310 - Lifeguard                                                            11.90 
  28350 - Park Attendant (Aide)                                                15.66 
  28510 - Recreation Aide/Health Facility Attendant                            11.35 
  28515 - Recreation Specialist                                                19.27 
  28630 - Sports Official                                                      12.47 
  28690 - Swimming Pool Operator                                               22.22 
29000 - Stevedoring/Longshoremen Occupational Services 
  29010 - Blocker And Bracer                                                   27.81 
  29020 - Hatch Tender                                                         27.81 
  29030 - Line Handler                                                         27.81 
  29041 - Stevedore I                                                          25.82 
  29042 - Stevedore II                                                         29.78 
30000 - Technical Occupations 
  30010 - Air Traffic Control Specialist, Center (HFO)   (see 2)               35.77 
  30011 - Air Traffic Control Specialist, Station (HFO)  (see 2)               24.66 
  30012 - Air Traffic Control Specialist, Terminal (HFO) (see 2)               27.16 
  30021 - Archeological Technician I                                           16.14 
  30022 - Archeological Technician II                                          18.43 
  30023 - Archeological Technician III                                         24.07 
  30030 - Cartographic Technician                                              25.48 
  30040 - Civil Engineering Technician                                         24.78 
  30061 - Drafter/CAD Operator I                                               16.14 
  30062 - Drafter/CAD Operator II                                              18.43 
  30063 - Drafter/CAD Operator III                                             20.55 
  30064 - Drafter/CAD Operator IV                                              24.77 
  30081 - Engineering Technician I                                             16.35 
  30082 - Engineering Technician II                                            18.35 
  30083 - Engineering Technician III                                           20.53 
  30084 - Engineering Technician IV                                            25.43 
  30085 - Engineering Technician V                                             31.11 
  30086 - Engineering Technician VI                                            38.46 
  30090 - Environmental Technician                                             22.34 
  30210 - Laboratory Technician                                                23.90 
  30240 - Mathematical Technician                                              22.36 
  30361 - Paralegal/Legal Assistant I                                          17.77 
  30362 - Paralegal/Legal Assistant II                                         22.02 
  30363 - Paralegal/Legal Assistant III                                        26.94 
  30364 - Paralegal/Legal Assistant IV                                         32.59 
  30390 - Photo-Optics Technician                                              22.36 
  30461 - Technical Writer I                                                   22.20 
  30462 - Technical Writer II                                                  27.15 
  30463 - Technical Writer III                                                 32.85 
  30491 - Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) Technician I                               22.74 
  30492 - Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) Technician II                              27.51 
  30493 - Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) Technician III                             32.97 
  30494 - Unexploded (UXO) Safety Escort                                       22.74 
  30495 - Unexploded (UXO) Sweep Personnel                                     22.74 
  30620 - Weather Observer, Combined Upper Air Or        (see 2)               20.55 
  Surface Programs 
  30621 - Weather Observer, Senior                       (see 2)               20.75 
31000 - Transportation/Mobile Equipment Operation Occupations 
  31020 - Bus Aide                                                             11.43 
  31030 - Bus Driver                                                           16.99 
  31043 - Driver Courier                                                       12.52 
  31260 - Parking and Lot Attendant                                            10.69 

Page 6 of 9

12/5/2016http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/std/05-2570.txt?v=19



  31290 - Shuttle Bus Driver                                                   13.65 
  31310 - Taxi Driver                                                          11.88 
  31361 - Truckdriver, Light                                                   13.65 
  31362 - Truckdriver, Medium                                                  14.80 
  31363 - Truckdriver, Heavy                                                   21.02 
  31364 - Truckdriver, Tractor-Trailer                                         21.02 
99000 - Miscellaneous Occupations 
  99030 - Cashier                                                              10.64 
  99050 - Desk Clerk                                                            9.81 
  99095 - Embalmer                                                             24.57 
  99251 - Laboratory Animal Caretaker I                                        12.19 
  99252 - Laboratory Animal Caretaker II                                       13.28 
  99310 - Mortician                                                            24.57 
  99410 - Pest Controller                                                      21.01 
  99510 - Photofinishing Worker                                                11.95 
  99710 - Recycling Laborer                                                    16.23 
  99711 - Recycling Specialist                                                 19.82 
  99730 - Refuse Collector                                                     14.49 
  99810 - Sales Clerk                                                          12.30 
  99820 - School Crossing Guard                                                14.43 
  99830 - Survey Party Chief                                                   23.63 
  99831 - Surveying Aide                                                       14.85 
  99832 - Surveying Technician                                                 20.32 
  99840 - Vending Machine Attendant                                            16.41 
  99841 - Vending Machine Repairer                                             20.45 
  99842 - Vending Machine Repairer Helper                                      16.41 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

ALL OCCUPATIONS LISTED ABOVE RECEIVE THE FOLLOWING BENEFITS: 

HEALTH & WELFARE: Life, accident, and health insurance plans, sick leave, pension 
plans, civic and personal leave, severance pay, and savings and thrift plans. 
Minimum employer contributions costing an average of $4.27 per hour computed on the 
basis of all hours worked by service employees employed on the contract. 

VACATION: 2 weeks paid vacation after 1 year of service with a contractor or 
successor; 3 weeks after 5 years, 4 weeks after 10 years, and 5 weeks after 20 years. 
  Length of service includes the whole span of continuous service with the present 
contractor or successor, wherever employed, and with the predecessor contractors in 
the performance of similar work at the same Federal facility.  (Reg. 29 CFR 4.173) 

HOLIDAYS: A minimum of ten paid holidays per year, New Year's Day, Martin Luther 
King Jr's Birthday, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor 
Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.  (A 
contractor may substitute for any of the named holidays another day off with pay in 
accordance with a plan communicated to the employees involved.)  (See 29 CFR 4174) 

THE OCCUPATIONS WHICH HAVE NUMBERED FOOTNOTES IN PARENTHESES RECEIVE THE FOLLOWING: 

1)  Does not apply to employees employed in a bona fide executive, administrative, 
or professional capacity as defined and delineated in 29 CFR 541.  (See CFR 4.156) 

2)  AIR TRAFFIC CONTROLLERS AND WEATHER OBSERVERS - NIGHT PAY & SUNDAY PAY:  If you 
work at night as part of a regular tour of duty, you will earn a night differential 
and receive an additional 10% of basic pay for any hours worked between 6pm and 6am. 
 If you are a full-time employed (40 hours a week) and Sunday is part of your 

Page 7 of 9

12/5/2016http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/std/05-2570.txt?v=19



regularly scheduled workweek, you are paid at your rate of basic pay plus a Sunday 
premium of 25% of your basic rate for each hour of Sunday work which is not overtime 
(i.e. occasional work on Sunday outside the normal tour of duty is considered 
overtime work). 

HAZARDOUS PAY DIFFERENTIAL: An 8 percent differential is applicable to employees 
employed in a position that represents a high degree of hazard when working with or 
in close proximity to ordinance, explosives, and incendiary materials.  This 
includes work such as screening, blending, dying, mixing, and pressing of sensitive 
ordance, explosives, and pyrotechnic compositions such as lead azide, black powder 
and photoflash powder.  All dry-house activities involving propellants or explosives. 
  Demilitarization, modification, renovation, demolition, and maintenance operations 
on sensitive ordnance, explosives and incendiary materials.  All operations 
involving regrading and cleaning of artillery ranges. 

A 4 percent differential is applicable to employees employed in a position that 
represents a low degree of hazard when working with, or in close proximity to 
ordance, (or employees possibly adjacent to) explosives and incendiary materials 
which involves potential injury such as laceration of hands, face, or arms of the 
employee engaged in the operation,  irritation of the skin, minor burns and the 
like; minimal damage to immediate or adjacent work area or equipment being used. 
All operations involving, unloading, storage, and hauling of ordance, explosive, and 
incendiary ordnance material other than small arms ammunition.  These differentials 
are only applicable to work that has been specifically designated by the agency for 
ordance, explosives, and incendiary material differential pay. 

** UNIFORM ALLOWANCE ** 

If employees are required to wear uniforms in the performance of this contract 
(either by the terms of the Government contract, by the employer, by the state or 
local law, etc.), the cost of furnishing such uniforms and maintaining (by 
laundering or dry cleaning) such uniforms is an expense that may not be borne by an 
employee where such cost reduces the hourly rate below that required by the wage 
determination. The Department of Labor will accept payment in accordance with the 
following standards as compliance: 

The contractor or subcontractor is required to furnish all employees with an 
adequate number of uniforms without cost or to reimburse employees for the actual 
cost of the uniforms.  In addition, where uniform cleaning and maintenance is made 
the responsibility of the employee, all contractors and subcontractors subject to 
this wage determination shall (in the absence of a bona fide collective bargaining 
agreement providing for a different amount, or the furnishing of contrary 
affirmative proof as to the actual cost), reimburse all employees for such cleaning 
and maintenance at a rate of $3.35 per week (or $.67 cents per day).  However, in 
those instances where the uniforms furnished are made of "wash and wear" 
materials, may be routinely washed and dried with other personal garments, and do 
not require any special treatment such as dry cleaning, daily washing, or commercial 
laundering in order to meet the cleanliness or appearance standards set by the terms 
of the Government contract, by the contractor, by law, or by the nature of the work, 
there is no requirement that employees be reimbursed for uniform maintenance costs. 

The duties of employees under job titles listed are those described in the 
"Service Contract Act Directory of Occupations", Fifth Edition, April 2006, 
unless otherwise indicated. Copies of the Directory are available on the Internet. A 
links to the Directory may be found on the WHD home page at http://www.dol. 
gov/esa/whd/ or through the Wage Determinations On-Line (WDOL) Web site at 
http://wdol.gov/. 

REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION OF ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATION AND WAGE RATE {Standard Form 
1444 (SF 1444)} 

Page 8 of 9

12/5/2016http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/std/05-2570.txt?v=19



Conformance Process: 

The contracting officer shall require that any class of service employee which is 
not listed herein and which is to be employed under the contract (i.e., the work to 
be performed is not performed by any classification listed in the wage 
determination), be classified by the contractor so as to provide a reasonable 
relationship (i.e., appropriate level of skill comparison) between such unlisted 
classifications and the classifications listed in the wage determination.  Such 
conformed classes of employees shall be paid the monetary wages and furnished the 
fringe benefits as are determined.  Such conforming process shall be initiated by 
the contractor prior to the performance of contract work by such unlisted class(es) 
of employees.  The conformed classification, wage rate, and/or fringe benefits shall 
be retroactive to the commencement date of the contract. {See Section 4.6 (C)(vi)} 
When multiple wage determinations are included in a contract, a separate SF 1444 
should be prepared for each wage determination to which a class(es) is to be 
conformed. 

The process for preparing a conformance request is as follows: 

1) When preparing the bid, the contractor identifies the need for a conformed 
occupation(s) and computes a proposed rate(s). 

2) After contract award, the contractor prepares a written report listing in order 
proposed classification title(s), a Federal grade equivalency (FGE) for each 
proposed classification(s), job description(s), and rationale for proposed wage 
rate(s), including information regarding the agreement or disagreement of the 
authorized representative of the employees involved, or where there is no authorized 
representative, the employees themselves.  This report should be submitted to the 
contracting officer no later than 30 days after such unlisted class(es) of employees 
performs any contract work. 

3) The contracting officer reviews the proposed action and promptly submits a report 
of the action, together with the agency's recommendations and pertinent 
information including the position of the contractor and the employees, to the Wage 
and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 
for review.  (See section 4.6(b)(2) of Regulations 29 CFR Part 4). 

4) Within 30 days of receipt, the Wage and Hour Division approves, modifies, or 
disapproves the action via transmittal to the agency contracting officer, or 
notifies the contracting officer that additional time will be required to process 
the request. 

5) The contracting officer transmits the Wage and Hour decision to the contractor. 

6) The contractor informs the affected employees. 

Information required by the Regulations must be submitted on SF 1444 or bond paper. 

When preparing a conformance request, the "Service Contract Act Directory of 
Occupations" (the Directory) should be used to compare job definitions to insure 
that duties requested are not performed by a classification already listed in the 
wage determination.  Remember, it is not the job title, but the required tasks that 
determine whether a class is included in an established wage determination. 
Conformances may not be used to artificially split, combine, or subdivide 
classifications listed in the wage determination. 

Page 9 of 9

12/5/2016http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/std/05-2570.txt?v=19





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 12/20/16         

Subject: 17-18 Budget 

Adoption  

Prepared by:       P Schut        

Reviewed by:   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution            _____ 

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion     X  

Other   _____ 

 
 

Consent Agenda            _____ 

Public Hearing               X  

1st Discussion            _____ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The 2017-2018 Budget public hearing was advertised, in the Tri- City Herald, on both December 6th & 
December 13th. The Budgets have also been posted on the County’s main web page since December 6th. 
  
 

SUMMARY 

 
Total Current Expense Revenues    $122,838,223 

 Total Current Expense Expenditures   $122,898,354 
 To Balance       $         60,131 
 
 Total Road Fund Revenues    $ 29,410,205 
 Total Road Fund Expenditures    $ 35,817,604 
 To Balance       $   6,407,399 
 
 Total Other Funds Revenues    $ 96,969,820 
 Total Other Funds Expenditures    $148,825,924 
 To Balance       $ 51,856,104 
 

 Total Revenues      $249,218,248 

 Total Expenditures     $307,541,822 

 To Balance       $ 58,323,634 
 
 

 

 

MOTION 
 
The Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby adopts the Final 2017-2018 Budget as presented 
during the December 20, 2016 Public Hearing. 

WEH
Text Box
Adoption of Final Biennium Budget ~ P Schut



Estimated Transfer Total Transfer Estimated

Fund Beginning from Active Funds to Active Ending

Fund Number Cash 01/01/17 Taxes Revenues Funds Available Expenditures Funds Cash 12/31/18

Current Expense 0000-101  $         7,500,000  $    67,615,855  $    52,859,545  $    2,362,823  $     130,338,223  $     116,525,055  $    6,373,299  $         7,439,869 
County Road 0101-101             8,451,000        12,003,000        11,803,205        5,604,000           37,861,205           35,817,604                     -               2,043,601 
CRIMP 0101-102             2,630,000                       -            1,863,300                     -               4,493,300                         -          3,832,000                661,300 
Flood Control 0103-101                  59,500                       -                   2,517                     -                    62,017                         -                 2,000                  60,017 
Veterans' Assistance 0104-101                534,400             346,000                 8,000                     -                  888,400                600,440                     -                  287,960 
Auditor's O&M 0106-101                200,000                       -               323,000                     -                  523,000                522,486                     -                         514 
Human Services 0108-101             5,000,000             752,500          8,586,600                     -             14,339,100           13,226,864             56,000             1,056,236 
Treasurer's Investment Pool 0109-101                150,000                       -               269,533                     -                  419,533                198,367                     -                  221,166 
Park Development 0110-102                650,000                       -                 47,150                697,150                220,000                     -                  477,150 
Election Reserve 0111-101                300,000                       -            1,029,200        1,087,175             2,416,375             2,316,442                     -                    99,933 
Treasurer's O&M 0112-101                200,000                       -               205,757                     -                  405,757                319,805                     -                    85,952 
Paths & Trails Reserve 0114-101                  35,000                       -                 43,303                     -                    78,303                       300             50,000                  28,003 
Juvenile Center 0115-101             1,100,000                       -            7,270,592        7,124,880           15,495,472           15,130,807                     -                  364,665 
Inmate Benevolence 0116-101                600,000                       -            1,048,488                     -               1,648,488             1,213,961                     -                  434,527 
Crime Victim Compensation 0120-101                  44,029                       -               546,533             15,000                605,562                605,562                     -                           -   
Fairgrounds O&M 0124-101                800,000                       -               525,000        2,151,000             3,476,000             2,999,589                     -                  476,411 
Sheriff Investigative 0126-101                175,000                       -                 88,680                     -                  263,680                133,525                     -                  130,155 
Canine/Boat Patrol 0127-101                  12,500                       -               161,720                     -                  174,220                101,671                     -                    72,549 
Treasurer's Service Fund 0128-101                    1,500                       -                   1,600                     -                      3,100                       705                     -                      2,395 
REET Technology 0129-101                100,000                       -                 74,900                     -                  174,900                         -                       -                  174,900 
1/4% Real Estate Excise Tax 0130-101             1,565,384             630,604                       -                       -               2,195,988                         -          1,574,788                621,200 
Probation  Assessment 0131-101                600,000                       -            1,211,398                     -               1,811,398             1,181,583                     -                  629,815 
Central Services Replacement 0132-101             1,900,000                       -            1,280,260                     -               3,180,260                         -          1,022,800             2,157,460 
1/10% CJ Jail-Juvenile 0133-101             8,294,137          7,062,110                       -                       -             15,356,247             7,700,000        3,906,935             3,749,312 
Sustainable  Development 0135-101                500,000                       -               153,570                     -                  653,570                526,777                     -                  126,793 
Courthouse  Facilitator 0136-101                  25,000                       -                 73,200                     -                    98,200                  52,500                     -                    45,700 
Family Services 0138-101                  18,379                       -                 57,420                     -                    75,799                  75,738                         61 
Family Services Superior Court 0140-101                  20,000                       -                 41,000                     -                    61,000                         -               40,000                  21,000 
Jail Depreciation Reserve 0142-101                800,000                       -                   2,700           356,000             1,158,700                726,233                     -                  432,467 
Rural County Capital Fund 0144-101             8,952,771          8,075,558                       -                       -             17,028,329           14,333,896        2,653,725                  40,708 

BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON
Consolidated Budget

For Years January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2018
Monday, December 05, 2016



Estimated Transfer Total Transfer Estimated

Fund Beginning from Active Funds to Active Ending

Fund Number Cash 01/01/17 Taxes Revenues Funds Available Expenditures Funds Cash 12/31/18

Clerk's Collection 0146-101  $         1,900,000  $                   -    $      1,232,100  $                 -    $         3,132,100  $         1,203,855  $                 -    $         1,928,245 
Public Safety Tax 0148-101             9,500,000        13,551,459               17,846                     -             23,069,305           11,033,833                     -             12,035,472 
Protective Inspection Services 0149-101                690,000                       -            1,886,951             98,630             2,675,581             1,556,146                     -               1,119,435 
Pest Board 0150-101                100,000                       -               197,673                     -                  297,673                297,673                     -                           -   
Work Crew Replacement 0151-101                250,000                       -                 52,937                     -                  302,937                  76,130                     -                  226,807 
State Housing Income 0152-101                690,000                       -               328,000                     -               1,018,000                971,600                     -                    46,400 
VIT Impact 0153-101             4,000,000             950,000                       -                       -               4,950,000             1,263,323        1,623,774             2,062,903 
Homeless Housing 0154-101             2,190,000                       -            1,503,000                     -               3,693,000             3,304,300                     -                  388,700 
Solid Waste Collection 0155-101                800,000                       -               789,000                     -               1,589,000             1,148,064                     -                  440,936 
Trial Court Improvement 0156-101                550,000                       -               225,000                     -                  775,000                522,031                     -                  252,969 
Historical  Preservation 0157-101                100,000                       -                 75,000                     -                  175,000                100,000                     -                    75,000 
Domestic Violence Assessment 0158-101                  22,500                       -                   9,085                     -                    31,585                  16,580             15,000                           5 
CRID #11 & #12 0270-201                    8,800                       -                 23,399                     -                    32,199                  22,766                     -                      9,433 
CRID #15 0271-201                    5,000                       -               101,677                     -                  106,677                  89,596                     -                    17,081 
CRID #16 0272-201                    1,500                       -                 14,042                     -                    15,542                  13,704                     -                      1,838 
CRID #21 Construction 0273-201                         -                         -               153,237                     -                  153,237                153,237                     -                           -   
Health Building Bond 0298-201                    7,910                       -               632,400           394,288             1,034,598             1,026,688                     -                      7,910 
Justice Center Bond 0299-201             6,344,250                       -                         -                       -               6,344,250             4,032,000                     -               2,312,250 
Detox Center Construction 0303-401                  17,550                       -                      151                     -                    17,701                  17,701                     -                           -   
Capital Projects 0305-101           23,250,000                       -               478,000           933,725           24,661,725           24,661,725                     -                           -   
Equipment Rental & Revolving 0501-101             3,500,000                       -            6,446,968                     -               9,946,968             6,054,215                     -               3,892,753 
Central Services 0502-101                750,000                       -            6,382,218        1,022,800             8,155,018             7,172,984                     -                  982,034 
Workmen's  Compensation 0503-101             3,000,000                       -            2,010,417                     -               5,010,417             2,184,439                     -               2,825,978 
Insurance Management 0504-101             2,000,000                       -            3,645,775                     -               5,645,775             3,647,052                     -               1,998,723 
Accumulated Leave 0505-101             1,100,000                       -            1,297,794                     -               2,397,794             1,292,009                     -               1,105,785 

GRAND TOTALS $111,996,110 $110,987,086 $117,080,841 $21,150,321 $361,214,358 $286,391,561 $21,150,321 $53,672,476

Monday, December 05, 2016

BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON
Consolidated Budget

For Years January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2018



BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON

2017-2018 Preliminary Current Expense Budget

Revenues, Expenditures and Fund Balance

December 5, 2016 @ 12pm

2015/16 2017/18 2017/18

Adopted Preliminary Final Adjusted

Budget Baseline Revision Budget

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance $7,500,000 $7,500,000 $0 7,500,000

Revenues:

Real and Personal Property Taxes 41,136,052 43,917,909 35,257 43,953,166

Administrative Refunds 96,000 102,900 0 102,900

Diverted Road Taxes 1,188,308 1,349,860 (197,020) 1,152,840

Retail Sales and Use Taxes 17,636,290 18,608,009 951,991 19,560,000

Retail Sales and Use Taxes-Criminal Justice 1,975,000 2,066,003 97,997 2,164,000

Other Taxes 788,500 654,481 28,468 682,949

Licenses and Permits 199,400 201,815 18,000 219,815

Intergovernmental Revenues 9,552,707 10,145,421 (373,041) 9,772,380

Charges for Services 35,527,650 32,660,048 1,004,926 33,664,974

Fines and Forfeitures 6,723,833 6,231,275 0 6,231,275

Miscellaneous Revenues 3,287,721 2,991,661 (20,560) 2,971,101

Other Financing Sources 4,065,845 3,296,000 (933,177) 2,362,823

     Total Revenues 122,177,306 122,225,382 612,841 122,838,223

Expenditures:

Assessor 4,538,536 5,122,068 (432,788) 4,689,280

Auditor 3,660,610 3,889,902 (29,635) 3,860,267

Board of Equalization 77,711 77,031 (238) 76,793

Civil Service 116,277 120,813 (247) 120,566

Clerk 4,872,799 5,030,163 (3,160) 5,027,003

Commissioners 2,309,165 2,441,906 2,798 2,444,704

Co-Operative Extension 602,374 624,357 (9,091) 615,266

Coroner 762,877 775,491 44,288 819,779

Facilities 4,206,158 4,452,418 17,570 4,469,988

District Court 6,749,116 7,355,805 (586,570) 6,769,235

LEOFF 361,600 435,000 0 435,000

Non-Departmental 11,848,488 11,712,131 (1,936,368) 9,775,763

Planning 1,367,337 1,532,284 17,555 1,549,839

Prosecuting Attorney 9,495,408 9,945,050 (25,140) 9,919,910

Sheriff-Administration 1,950,083 2,036,948 227,915 2,264,863

Sheriff-C & R 1,679,524 1,965,963 (782) 1,965,181

Sheriff-Custody 35,167,360 34,126,963 17,989 34,144,952

Sheriff-Patrol 15,635,640 16,557,809 (920,433) 15,637,376

Superior Court 5,268,317 5,546,703 (41,248) 5,505,455

Treasurer 2,664,191 2,943,367 (256,162) 2,687,205

Sheriff-Traffic Control 1,188,308 1,158,198 (5,358) 1,152,840

Parks 422,849 462,452 (1,264) 461,188

Personnel 560,116 608,747 (5,301) 603,446

TB Hospital 140,850 140,850 0 140,850

GIS 779,216 786,722 16,189 802,911

Office of Public Defense 5,118,242 6,276,943 (5,957) 6,270,986

Animal Control 329,400 488,644 (48,670) 439,974

Adult & Juvenile Drug Court 462,487 251,311 (3,577) 247,734

     Total Expenditures 122,335,039 126,866,039 (3,967,685) 122,898,354

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance (157,733) (4,640,657) 4,580,526 (60,131)

Estimated Ending Fund Balance $7,342,267 $2,859,343 $4,580,526 7,439,869



BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON

2017-2018 Preliminary Public Safety Tax Budget

Revenues, Expenditures and Fund Balance

December 6, 2016 @ 8:00 AM

2015/16 2017/18 2017/18

Adopted Preliminary Final Adjusted

Budget Baseline Revision Budget

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance $0 $9,500,000 $0 $9,500,000

Revenues:

Public Safety Tax (3/10%) 4,421,192 13,551,459 0 13,551,459

Miscellaneous Revenues 192,823 17,846 0 17,846

     Total Revenues 4,614,015 13,569,305 0 13,569,305

Expenditures:

Clerk 82,937 125,134 289,163 414,297

District Court 20,918 235,538 (157,140) 78,398

Mental Heath Court 405,527 666,476 131,270 797,746

Non-Departmental 500,000 500,000 2,028,624 2,528,624

Prosecuting Attorney 364,305 755,686 165,865 921,551

Sheriff-Custody 767,537 1,250,093 982 1,251,075

Sheriff-Patrol 1,402,462 2,897,698 130,447 3,028,145

Metro Drug Task Force 146,294 261,602 61,278 322,880

Superior Court 119,072 246,082 (12,875) 233,207

Public Safety Administration 29,561 92,582 90 92,672

Office of Public Defense 175,238 197,703 51,253 248,956

Adult & Juvenile Drug Court 488,174 783,427 126,767 910,194
Juvenile Operations 141,100 205,209 879 206,088

     Total Expenditures 4,643,125 8,217,230 2,816,603 11,033,833

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance (29,110) 5,352,075 (2,816,603) 2,535,472

Estimated Ending Fund Balance ($29,110) $14,852,075 ($2,816,603) $12,035,472



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING THE FINAL 2017-2018 BENTON COUNTY BUDGETS 
 
WHEREAS, after notice given pursuant to RCW 36.40 et. seq. the first public hearing on the 2017 - 2018 
budgets was held on December 20, 2016 for the purpose of fixing the final budgets; NOW THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the 2017 – 2018 Benton County budgets are adopted at the following levels: 
 

• Agency expenses (0000’s) – category level within each department. 
 

• Salaries (1000’s) – category level within each department, however, line item transfers to or from 
overtime, temporary help, and holiday pay will need Board approval. 
 

• Benefits (2000’s) – category level within each department, however, employee payroll benefits 
such as social security, retirement, and medical insurance cannot be used for employee benefits 
such as uniforms, uniform accessories, and uniform laundry without Board approval. 
 

• Supplies (3000’s) – category level within each department. 
 

• Other services and charges (4000’s) – category level within each department. 
 

• Intergovernmental services (5000’s) – category level within each department. 
 

• Capital outlays (6000’s) – category level within each department. 
 

• Interfund payments (9000’s) – category level within each department.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, line item transfers between categories within each department, with the 
exception of transfers between 3000’s (computer replacement and non-replacement computers excluded) 
and 4000’s, will need Board approval; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, line item transfers from other categories, that are meant to create a new 
position in the 1000’s and 2000’s, are to be brought before the Board of Commissioners under scheduled 
business for discussion; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, each department is required to account for expenditures and revenues 
within the BARS-assigned account numbers including the prime and base sub-field, element and sub-
element field, and object and sub-object field as detailed by each departmental budget; and 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc: All Dept; State Auditor; Journal; file  Prepared by: P. Schut 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED per the detailed attachments to this resolution, the Benton County budgets 
for 2017 - 2018 are hereby adopted: 
 
 Total Current Expense Revenues    $122,838,223 
 Total Current Expense Expenditures    $122,898,354 
 To Balance       $         60,131 
 
 Total Road Fund Revenues     $ 29,410,205 
 Total Road Fund Expenditures     $ 35,817,604 
 To Balance       $   6,407,399 
 
 Total Other Funds Revenues     $  96,969,820 
 Total Other Funds Expenditures     $148,825,924 
 To Balance       $  51,856,104 
 
 Total Revenues      $249,218,248 
 Total Expenditures      $307,541,822 
 To Balance       $  58,323,634 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 

cc: All Dept; State Auditor; Journal; file  Prepared by: P. Schut 



    

P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 
commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

     

  

                                          
December 20, 2016 
 

TO: Citizens of Benton County 

RE: 2017-2018 Benton County Budget 

 

 

Citizens of Benton County, 

 

It is an honor to present the final 2017-2018 Benton County biennial budget. This budget is the fourth 

biennial budget that the County has prepared as means to maintain the financial stability and continued 

sustainability of County services. This biennial budget appears to have a 8% increase over the 2015-

2016 budget, due to large capital improvement projects and system updates that allow the County to 

provide high-quality, timely services to the community.  

 

New projects include, but are not limited to: 1) Justice Center tenant improvements including office 

space remodels; 2) Justice Center roof renovations to include the main Justice Center buildings as well 

as the Coroner’s building; 3) Improvements to Benton County Fairgrounds, including building 

renovations and expo hall construction; and 4) Security system updates. Along with the progression of 

these new projects, the County has seen substantial progress or completion of past projects. The 

property tax and assessment system update has been completed as well as the replacement of heating, 

ventilation, and air-conditioning systems in the Prosser Courthouse. There has also been continued 

progress in discussions of construction for the Mental Health Detention section in the Jail, with 

completion of feasibility studies and staffing studies to determine the appropriate next steps for the 

project. 

 

These capital projects, along with others, can be found in the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) which 

was approved on November 1, 2016 and is located on the Benton County website at 

http://benton.municipalcms.com/docview.aspx?docid=12592.  

 

Investment in new technologies remains a high priority for the County. In 2016, the County 

implemented Facebook and Twitter pages as a way to connect with our constituents and provide timely, 

relevant information. A new website has been implemented, with the goal to give employees and 

community members a more efficient and user-friendly way to connect with services, pay fines, get 

information, and contact us.  

 

Even as the economy in our region continues to improve, the County’s financial forecast shows that 

our future costs are outpacing anticipated revenues. In the past budget cycle, 2015-2016, the County 

was able to remain “budget-neutral” – with sales tax increases covering losses experienced due to legal 

financial obligation (LFO) impacts. This challenge was presented to the Commissioners as well as to 

other elected officials, with the budget reflecting elected officials’ and department managers’ 

continued conscientiousness in ensuring efficiency while continuing to provide exceptional service to 

our citizens. Through sound fiscal decision-making and efforts to seek out efficiencies, Benton County 

was able to balance its 2017-2018 General Fund biennial budget.  

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
http://benton.municipalcms.com/docview.aspx?docid=12592


    

P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 
commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

 

The Public Safety Sales Tax, approved by taxpayers in 2014, has shown to be extraordinarily successful 

in combatting local crime and gang involvement. The County has hired numerous additional officers 

and provided them with new up-to-date equipment, successfully implemented Mental Health Court, 

which has been reporting high success, and has contracted with multiple community organizations to 

provide gang and crime prevention services throughout the community, with funding through the 

Benton County Gang and Crime Prevention Initiative. The 2017-2018 biennium will be the first full 

biennium operation of this Initiative, with high rates of success anticipated. 

 

The Rural County Capital Fund now has substantial funds to pay off the remaining bond debt 

obligation, with a new contract being drafted to allow the County and Cities to partner in economic 

development projects. We look forward to working with the Cities and local economic development 

organizations as we work together to improve our community. 

 

Despite these successes, there are still some uncertainties that lie ahead for 2017-2018. Although there 

are signs of increased revenue from retail sales and use tax, the County’s second-largest revenue 

source, there will continue to be close monitoring of these funds. The County will analyze these 

projections quarterly, to ensure that there is adequate preparation to respond in case of any major 

variances occur.  

 

Another uncertainty lies in the County’s receipt of Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) from the United 

States Department of Energy. These funds are received because the Hanford Site occupies a large 

property area that otherwise would be available for property taxes. Much of these funds are passed on 

from the County to local school districts, library districts, and the Port of Benton to pay for projects 

and improvements to the community. The County has been experiencing difficulty in receiving these 

funds, and is therefore a financial uncertainty for the coming budget. 

 

The Affordable Care Act (ACA) remains an uncertainty for the County in 2017-2018. The County is 

continuing to work through the potential fiscal impact of the ACA, with concerns over the high-cost 

plan tax (aka “Cadillac tax”) that would take effect in 2020. 

 

In summary, the Benton County 2017-2018 biennial budget is fiscally sound and continues to provide 

the citizens of Benton County with high-quality services. As such, the Board of Benton County 

Commissioners would like to acknowledge and thank the elected officials, department managers, and 

all employees for their diligent work to achieve County-wide goals and providing exceptional customer 

service to our citizens. We are optimistic that 2017-2018 will be prosperous for Benton County and its 

citizens. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

      
Shon Small, Chairman  James Beaver, Commissioner  Jerome Delvin, Commissioner 

 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us

	CA - Commissioners d.pdf
	Resolution
	Form
	Com.pdf
	Resolution


	CA - District Court i.pdf
	DC.pdf
	Form


	CA - District Court j.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Facilities k.pdf
	Cover Sheet
	Notice of Lowest Responsible Bidder Resolution

	CA - Pros Atty t.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Pros Atty u.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	PH - 2017-2018 Budget.pdf
	Budget Adoption Resolution 2017-2018-Final.pdf
	To Balance       $  58,323,634
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County


	Agenda Action Budget .pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION

	Complete Summary.pdf
	Complete Summary

	Current Expense - Summary.pdf
	Summary





